
 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
ADA Accommodations and Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities by calling 801-395-8283 three days 
prior to the meeting.  Individuals with speech and/or hearing impairments may call the Relay Utah dialing 711.  Spanish Relay Utah:  1-888-346-3162.  
Equal Opportunity Employer/Program 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, September 6, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 

5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City 
801-393-8681  

www.washingtonterracecity.com 
 

         
1.     ROLL CALL                                                  6:00 p.m. 
 
2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.     WELCOME 
 
4.     CONSENT ITEMS 
 

4.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed here prior 
to the approval of the agenda. 
  

       4.2  APPROVAL OF AUGUST 16, 2016, MINUTES 
 
5.    SPECIAL ORDER 
      Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, questions 
        By Council, Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then Council final 
        Discussion.  
       5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE WASHINGTON TERRACE 
              WATER, SEWER, STORM WATER AND REFUSE COLLECTION REVENUE  
              BONDS, SERIES 2016 IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $6,000,000, IN ONE  
              OR MORE SERIES, FOR A PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING AND RELATED  
              MATTERS. 

 
6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 

This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a            
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes.        
 

7.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 
       COMMENTS 

Council and staff will consider and address concerns and take appropriate measures to follow up on any comments 



 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
ADA Accommodations and Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities by calling 801-395-8283 three days 
prior to the meeting.  Individuals with speech and/or hearing impairments may call the Relay Utah dialing 711.  Spanish Relay Utah:  1-888-346-3162.  
Equal Opportunity Employer/Program 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

made in the citizen comments item on the agenda.                 
 
8.     NEW BUSINESS            

8.1  MOTION/RESOLUTION 16-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, WEBER COUNTY, UTAH (THE 
“ISSUER”) AUTHORIZING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
ISSUANCE AND SALE BY THE ISSUER OF ITS WATER, SEWER, STORM 
WATER AND REFUSE COLLECTION REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 IN THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $6,000,000 (THE 
“SERIES 2016 BOND”); APPOINTING A PRICING COMMITTEE; 
AUTHORIZING A FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND 
AUTHORIZING ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY AND DESIRABLE FOR 
THIS FINANCING; AND RELATED MATTERS    

8.2  MOTION: APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN FOR A TWO LOT SUBDIVISION  
     TO BE LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 286 WEST 5600 SOUTH 
 Site Plan Approval for a 2 lot residential subdivision to be located at 286 West 5600 South .     
 
 8.3 MOTION/ORDINANCE16-05: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF  
     WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH, ADOPTING SECTION 10.18.010    
     ALLOWING FOR ROAD CLASSIFICATION AND LIMITED ACCESS  
     FACILITIES; ADOPTING SECTION 17.44.205 RELATING TO  
     LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR ARTERIAL AND COLLECTOR 
     ROADS 
An ordinance allowing City Council to designate certain roads “limited access facilities”, and restrict homes 
on those roads from being built or designed with driveways accessing the roads.  It also addresses the 
landscaping on the arterial roads. 
 
8.4  MOTION/ORDINACE 16-06: AMENDING SECTION 17.12.050 RELATING  
     TO RESIDENTIAL YARD SETBACKS 
An ordinance amending the side yard setback requirements from 8-5 feet minimum to 5-5 feet minimum in 
the R-1-6 zones. 
 
8.5  PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY UPDATE 
 
9.   COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 
This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken.     

10.  ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
        This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items. 
 
11.     UPCOMING EVENTS        
           September 14-16th :ULCT Conference to be held in Salt Lake City 



 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
ADA Accommodations and Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities by calling 801-395-8283 three days 
prior to the meeting.  Individuals with speech and/or hearing impairments may call the Relay Utah dialing 711.  Spanish Relay Utah:  1-888-346-3162.  
Equal Opportunity Employer/Program 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

         September 20th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
         September 29, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting (tentative) 
 
12.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  
 



CC Minutes 08-16-16 

 1 
 2 
 3 

City of Washington Terrace 4 

_________________________________________________ 5 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 6 

Held on August 16, 2016 7 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 8 

County of Weber, State of Utah 9 

 10 
 11 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 12 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 13 

Council Member Scott Monsen  14 

Council Member Blair Brown  15 

Council Member Robert Jensen  16 

Council Member Scott Barker  17 

Council Member Val Shupe – excused 18 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 19 

City Manager Tom Hanson 20 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  21 

Lt. Jason Talbot, Weber County Sheriff 22 

 23 

Others Present 24 
Charles and Reba Allen, Ulis Gardiner, Johnathan Ward from Zions Bank, Gary Klema 25 

         26 

1.     ROLL CALL                                                  6:00 p.m. 27 

 28 

2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 29 

 30 

3.     WELCOME 31 

 32 

4.     CONSENT ITEMS 33 

 34 

4.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 35 

       4.2  APPROVAL OF JULY 19, 2016, MINUTES 36 
Items 4.1 and 4.2 were approved by general consent. 37 

 38 

5.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 39 
There were no citizen comments. 40 

 41 

6.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 42 

       COMMENTS 43 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 5, item 6 in unnecessary. 44 

                    45 

 46 

7.     NEW BUSINESS            47 

7.1  MOTION/RESOLUTION 16-13: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING NOTICE 48 

OF NOT MORE THAN $6,000,000 IN WATER, SEWER AND REFUSE 49 



CC Minutes 08-16-16 

COLLECTION REVENUE BONDS, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, FOR A PUBLIC 50 

WORKS BUILDING; FIXING THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT, 51 

MATURITY, INTEREST RATE, AND DISCOUNT; PROVIDING FOR THE 52 

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND BONDS TO BE 53 

ISSUED; PROVIDING FOR THE RUNNING OF A CONTEST PERIOD; AND 54 

RELATED MATTERS. 55 

Financial Advisor Johnathan Ward presented to Council. He stated that the bond process 56 

is lengthy and the Resolution tonight sets the parameters of the bonds. He stated that they 57 

are built wider than expected under current conditions today to allow for changes in the 58 

market, bid pricing, construction prices and other factors. He stated that the parameters are 59 

set for the bond to be up to $6,000,000. 60 

He stated that the bonds are built to be marketable. He stated that the bonds are built at a 61 

25 year term limit; however it is not expected that the debt will be that long. 62 

He stated that there will be a public hearing at the next meeting so that citizens can voice 63 

their concerns about the bonds or project. Ward stated that the 30 day contest period 64 

would be triggered by this resolution. 65 

Ward stated that there will be an authorizing resolution delegating authority to the City 66 

Manager and Finance Director to finalize the terms and conditions of the bonds subject to 67 

the parameters set tonight. 68 

Ward stated that the City will procure a bond rating and sale of the bonds will take place 69 

in January 2017. 70 

Council Member Monsen asked what the anticipated interest rate would be now if we 71 

closed at this time. Ward stated that the bonds will sell at multiple interest rates at every 72 

principal payment when the coupons are paid every year. He stated that it could range 73 

between 1.5 to 5 percent.  74 

Ward stated that the rate will be locked in at the time of sale, with  the weighted average 75 

is expected to be at 2.255 percent. He stated that he doesn’t expect any rate increases. He 76 

stated that he does not expect a dramatic increase by January. Ward stated that the City 77 

does not have a lot of outstanding debt. Ward stated that there will be a meeting with the 78 

rating agency within the next few months in San Francisco. He stated that by keeping our 79 

AA rating, the City can maintain the low interest rate. Council Member Jensen asked if the 80 

market is shy right now going into an election year. Ward stated that he believes it is a 81 

great time, stating that there has been no slow- down in investor bonds. Ward stated that 82 

January is historically a good time to sell bonds and expects great results. 83 

 84 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 85 

Seconded by Council Member Barker 86 

To approve Resolution 16-13 87 

Parameters Resolution 88 

Approved (3-1) 89 

Roll Call Vote:  90 

Council Member Monsen- Aye 91 

Council Member Brown –Nay 92 

Council Member Jensen- Aye 93 

Council Member Barker- Aye 94 

 95 

 96 
 97 



CC Minutes 08-16-16 

7.2  DISCUSSION/MOTION: AWARD CONTRACT FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND  98 

     ENGINEERING DESIGN FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY 99 
        100 
Harris stated that staff has gone out for a request for proposal for the architectural and engineering 101 

design for the public works building. The design is to be completed by the end of the year so that 102 

the City can receive bids at the beginning of the year.  103 

Harris stated that 7 firms answered the proposals. He stated 3 firms were interviewed.  104 

Harris stated 4 things were evaluated, with cost being one of the items. Harris stated the bids for 105 

cost ranged between $107,415.00-234,424.00. 106 

He stated that ability, experience, and expertise were the other aspects of the decision process. 107 

Harris stated that Cartwright Engineering was chosen by the review team. The bid is $107,415.00, 108 

however staff is asking for approval up to $125,000 to account for any changes in the pricing or 109 

any unforeseen issues. 110 

Harris stated that the firm has previously worked for the City. 111 

Harris stated that it was found that the steel building that staff had originally planned to move 112 

over to the new location does not have the bracing or structural integrity to be moved and staff 113 

has chosen not to move forward with that option. 114 

Harris stated that Cartwright has great experience with metal structures. Harris stated that staff 115 

will be part of the final drawings and the project will go out to bid for construction with the 116 

specifications drawn up by Cartwright.  117 

 118 

  119 

      Motion by Council Member Barker 120 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 121 

To award the contract for architectural and 122 

Engineering design for the public works facility 123 

To the firm of Cartwright Engineering AEC. 124 

The motion included authorizing the amount  125 

Up to $125,000  126 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 127 
 128 

       7.3 PRESENTATION: MOSQUITO ABATEMENT UPDATE 129 
Mayor Allen thanked Council Member Jensen for serving on the Board. Council Member Jensen stated 130 

that the City does not see as many mosquitoes as the west part of the County. He stated that larvae 131 

samples have been sent every week for testing and all the samples show zero for West Nile virus in 132 

Weber County. Council Member Jensen stating that one of the more active cities with the West Nile virus 133 

is St. George. 134 

Council Member Jensen gave an example of city requests for mosquito spraying of areas, noting that 135 

there have been 105 requests for spraying in Plain City, while Washington Terrace City has had 1 request 136 

and is attributed to Terrace Days. 137 

Council Member Jensen stated that the mosquitos are not born with Zika, and that there is no evidence of 138 

any Zika born virus in the United States, noting that the virus may be coming in through produce or other 139 

instances.  140 

Council Member Monsen asked if Zika was particular to a certain species of mosquito. Council Member 141 

Jensen stated that he has not heard of any certain type of species, but noted that transmission can take 142 

place from any blood meal that has the virus to a mosquito that feeds off of it. 143 

Council Member Jensen stated that there were articles that appeared in the AP wires stating that the 144 

county sprayed a farmer’s land on the west side of the county and fogged his beehive. Council Member 145 

Jensen wanted to clarify that the situation was checked out be the Director and although the beehive was 146 

affected, there were a total of 12 bees killed.  147 



CC Minutes 08-16-16 

 148 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 149 
There were no communications with staff. 150 

       151 

9.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 152 
There were no administration reports. 153 

         154 

10.     UPCOMING EVENTS   155 
         August 25th: Planning Commission meeting  6:00 p.m. 156 
         September 5th: City Offices closed in observance of Labor Day 157 
         September 6th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 158 
         September 14-16th :ULCT Conference to be held in Salt Lake City 159 
         September 20th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 160 
 161 
11.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  162 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m. 163 

 164 

 165 

12.   RIBBON CUTTING CEREMONY AT VICTORY PARK           7:00 P.M. 166 
      Council will attend a ribbon cutting ceremony held at Victory Park, located at 300 East 4400 167 

       South, Washington Terrace.  168 

 169 

_________________________________      ________________________________ 170 

Date Approved                                City Recorder 171 



City Council 
Staff Report 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Author:  Tom Hanson    
Subject:   Authorizing Resolution 
Date:  September 6, 2016 
Type of Item:  Resolution    
 
 

 
Summary: In order to move forward with the bonding for the Public Works Project we need to 
take care of two items that work hand-in-hand to prepare for future approval of the issuance of 
bonds.  The first item to consider is the Parameter’s Resolution that will set the maximum 
parameters for the bond issuance. (Completed in the August 9th meeting)  
 
The second item is the Authorizing Resolution that formally delegate’s authority to the City 
Manager and Finance Director to enter into an agreement in behalf of the city based on the 
parameters set by the Council.  
 
Details of the bond will come back to the City Council for approval and will include a thorough 
outline of the process fees, insurances, and interest rates associated with the bond.  
 
Description: 

A. Topic: Authorizing Resolution    
 

B. Background: In order to issue bonds in behalf of the city there is a series of steps that 
need to be taken before entering into an agreement for financing. Two of these steps are 
the Parameters Resolution and the Authorization Resolution. As described in the 
Summary, the Parameters Resolution is a formal directive from the Council that limits the 
amount of the issuance of bonds not to exceed $6,000,000. (Completed in the August 9th 
meeting) 
 
This formal directive sets the upper limit of bond issuance, fees, insurances and the 
overall cost of acquiring funding and the actual financing of the shop project. In order to 
make sure that we do not delay the funding process it has been advised that we open the 
parameter to include the $5,000,000 for the shop budget and the additional $1,000,000 
for other fees and buy downs that may apply. This will allow for any buy down of interest 
rates, or self-insurance that may be advantageous to the issuance. The cost of issuance 
and any fees associated with the bonding is part of the worst case scenario of $7,000,000 
for the total cost of the shop project that includes interest and issuance costs.  
 
In addition to the Parameters Resolution, the city also has a requirement to authorize 
individuals to enter into an agreement for bonding that reflects the direction of the Mayor 
and Council. It is recommended and customary that the Finance Director and City 
Manager perform this function in behalf of the City. The City Manager and Finance 

ADMINISTRATION 



Director are intimately acquainted with the bond process, work directly with the 
Financial Advisor and are positioned to represent the city in a way that will benefit the 
issuance.  
 

C. Analysis: The Parameters Resolution and Authorization Resolution were authored in 
order to comply with laws and directives that govern municipality bonding activities. It is 
understood that Zions Public Finance and BCJ Law have complied with all regulations 
associated with these resolutions and therefore staff recommends approving the 
Authorization Resolution as submitted.   

 
 

 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006  1 

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH 

WATER, SEWER, STORM WATER AND REFUSE COLLECTION 

REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2016 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 

WASHINGTON TERRACE, WEBER COUNTY, UTAH (THE 

“ISSUER”) AUTHORIZING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 

THE ISSUANCE AND SALE BY THE ISSUER OF ITS WATER, 

SEWER, STORM WATER AND REFUSE COLLECTION REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2016 IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $6,000,000 (THE “SERIES 2016 BOND”); 

APPOINTING A PRICING COMMITTEE; AUTHORIZING A FIFTH 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS 

REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING 

ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY AND DESIRABLE FOR THIS 

FINANCING; AND RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Washington Terrace, 

Weber County, Utah (the “Issuer”) desires (i) to finance the relevant improvements to the 

applicable utility systems, including a public works building (the “Project”), and related 

improvements, (ii) funding a deposit to a debt service reserve fund, if desirable, and (iii) 

to pay the costs associated with said financing; and 

WHEREAS, in order to accomplish the purposes set forth in the preceding recital, 

the Issuer desires to issue its Water, Sewer, Storm Water and Refuse Collection Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2016 in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $6,000,000  (the 

“Series 2016 Bonds”) pursuant to this Resolution, a General Indenture of Trust dated as 

of June 1, 2001 between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association as Trustee (the 

“Trustee”), which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B" (the “General Indenture”), and the 

Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of the first of the month in which the 

series 2016 Bonds are issued between the Issuer and the Trustee, in substantially the form 

presented to the meeting at which this Resolution was adopted and which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit "C" (the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture”); and 

WHEREAS, the Act, the Local Government Bonding Act, Title 14, Chapter 11, 

Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the “Act”), provides that the Issuer may, by 

resolution, delegate to one or more officers of Issuer the authority to: (i) in accordance 

with and within the parameters set forth in the August 16, 2016 Parameters Resolution, 

approve the final interest rate or rates, price, principal amount, maturity or maturities, 

redemption features, and other terms of the 2016 Bond(s); and (ii) approve and execute 

all documents relating to the issuance of the 2016 Bond(s). 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   2 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to delegate to its City Manager and Finance 

Director (together, the “Pricing Committee”) the authority, in accordance with the August 

16, 2016 Parameters Resolution and this Resolution, the authority to approve the final 

interest rate or rates, price, principal amount, maturity or maturities, redemption features, 

and other terms of the Bonds; and select an underwriter or purchaser:  

WHEREAS, the Series 2016 Bonds shall be payable solely from the Net 

Revenues and other moneys pledged therefore in the General Indenture and the Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture (collectively, the “Indenture”), and shall not constitute or give 

rise to a general obligation or liability of the Issuer or constitute a charge against its 

general credit or taxing powers: 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the 

City of Washington Terrace, Weber County, Utah, as follows: 

Section 1. The terms defined or described in the recitals hereto shall have the 

same meanings when used in the body of this Resolution. 

Section 2. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions 

of this Resolution), by the Council and by the officers of the Issuer directed toward the 

issuance and sale of the Series 2016 Bonds, are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 3. The Fifth Supplemental Indenture attached hereto as Exhibit "C" is 

in all respects hereby authorized and approved in preliminary form, and the Mayor and -

City Recorder are hereby authorized and directed to finalize and execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the Issuer. 

Section 4. For the purposes set forth in the Fifth Supplemental Indenture the 

Issuer hereby authorizes the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds which shall be designated 

“City of Washington Terrace, Weber County, Utah Water, Sewer, Storm Water and 

Refuse Collection Revenue Bonds, Series 2016”. 

Section 5. The Issuer hereby authorizes the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds 

in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $6,000,000.  The Series 2016 Bonds shall 

bear interest, shall be dated, shall be issued as fully registered Bonds, and shall mature as 

provided in the Fifth Supplemental Indenture as shall be approved by the Pricing 

Committee, as authorized by Section 11-14-302 of the Act, provided that the principal 

amount, interest rate or rates, maturity and discount shall not exceed the maximums set 

forth in August 16, 2016 parameters resolution of $6,000,000 aggregate principal amount 

of its Series 2016 Bonds, in one or more series, to bear interest at the rate or rates of not 

to exceed 5.5% per annum, to mature in not more than twenty-five (25) years from their 

date or dates, and to be sold at a price not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of the total 

principal amount thereof. 

Section 6. The Mayor and City Recorder are hereby authorized and directed, 

and the power is hereby delegated to them, to execute and deliver the Series 2016 Bonds 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   3 

and the Indenture and all documents relating to the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds on 

behalf of the Issuer, with such additions, modifications, deletions and changes thereto as 

may be deemed necessary or appropriate and approved by the Mayor, whose execution 

thereof on behalf of the Issuer shall conclusively establish such necessity, appropriateness 

and approval with respect to all such additions, modifications, deletions and changes 

incorporated therein. 

Section 7. The Series 2016 Bonds shall be sold to an Underwriter or 

Purchaser as authorized and approved by the City Manager and Finance Director.  

Section 8. Upon their issuance, the Series 2016 Bonds will constitute special 

limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from and to the extent of the sources set 

forth in the Series 2016 Bonds and the Indenture.  No provision of this Resolution, the 

Indenture, any Bond Purchase Contract or Bid, the Official Statement, the Series 2016 

Bonds, or any other instrument, shall be construed as creating a general obligation of the 

Issuer, or of creating a general obligation of the State of Utah or any political subdivision 

thereof, or as incurring or creating a charge upon the general credit of the Issuer or its 

taxing powers. 

Section 9. The appropriate officials of the Issuer, and each of them, are 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver for and on behalf of the Issuer any 

or all additional certificates, documents and other papers and to perform all other acts 

they may deem necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the matters 

authorized in this Resolution and the documents authorized and approved herein. 

Section 10. After the Series 2016 Bonds are delivered by the Trustee to the 

selected Underwriter or Purchaser, and upon receipt of payment therefore, this Resolution 

shall be and remain irrepealable until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 

Series 2016 Bonds are deemed to have been duly discharged in accordance with the terms 

and provisions of the Indenture. 

Section 11. For purposes of and in accordance with Section 265 of the Code, 

the Issuer hereby designates the Series 2016 Bonds as an issue qualifying for the 

exception for certain qualified tax-exempt obligations to the rule denying banks and other 

financial institutions 100% of the deduction for interest expenses which is allocable to 

tax-exempt interest.  The Issuer reasonably anticipates that the total amount of 

tax-exempt obligations (other than obligations described in Section 265(b)(3)(C) (ii) of 

the Code) which will be issued by the Issuer and by any aggregated issuer during 

calendar year 2016 will not exceed $10,000,000.  For purposes of this Section, 

“aggregated issuer” means any entity which, (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Issuer, 

(ii) derives its issuing authority from the Issuer, or (iii) is directly or indirectly controlled 

by the Issuer within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-1(e).  The Issuer 

hereby represents that (a) it has not created and does not intend to create and does not 

expect to benefit from any entity formed or availed of to avoid the purposes of Section 

265(b)(3)(C) or (D) of the Code and (b) the total amount of obligations so designated by 

the Issuer and all aggregated issuers for the calendar year 2016 does not exceed 

$10,000,000. 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   4 

Section 12. The General Indenture, and form of the Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture, and Preliminary Official Statement (as defined herein) authorized and 

approved hereby are authorized and approved with such additions, modifications, 

deletions and changes thereto as may be deemed necessary or appropriate and approved 

by the Mayor, whose execution thereof on behalf of the Issuer shall conclusively 

establish such necessity, appropriateness and approval with respect to all such additions, 

modifications, deletions and changes incorporated therein. 

Section 13. The Issuer hereby ratifies the preparation, distribution and use of 

the Preliminary Official Statement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D in the 

marketing of the Series 2016 Bonds and hereby authorizes and approves the Official 

Statement.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to finalize and execute the final Official 

Statement evidencing its acceptance by the Issuer. 

Section 14. In accordance with the provisions of the Utah Local Government 

Bonding Act, Title 11, Chapter 14, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, the Issuer 

has designated the Standard Examiner as the official newspaper of the Issuer authorized 

to publish legal notices for the Issuer, and in accordance with Title 11, Chapter 14, Utah 

Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, the City Recorder has caused a “Notice of Public 

Hearing and Bonds to be Issued” to be published once a week for two consecutive weeks, 

with the first publication at least 14 days before this date and to post it on the Public 

Notice website at least 14 days before this date in the Standard Examiner, a newspaper 

having general circulation in the Issuer and has caused a copy of a Parameters Resolution 

(together with all exhibits hereto)  to be kept on file in the office of the City Recorder of 

the Issuer for public examination during regular business hours for at least thirty (30) 

days from and after the publication thereof. 

Section 15.   It is hereby declared that all parts of this Resolution are severable, 

and if any section, clause or provision of this Resolution shall, for any reason, be held to 

be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of any such section, clause 

or provision shall not affect the remaining sections, clauses or provisions of this 

Resolution. 

Section 16. All resolutions, orders and regulations or parts thereof heretofore 

adopted or passed which are in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, 

hereby repealed.  This repealer shall not be construed so as to revive any resolution, 

order, regulation or part thereof heretofore repealed.   

Section 17. The City Recorder is directed to complete the attached Record of 

Proceedings. 

Section 18. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its approval 

and adoption. 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   5 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this September 6, 2016. 

 

____________________________________ 

 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

 City Recorder 

 

( S E A L ) 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   6 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Washington Terrace, Weber 

County, Utah (the “Issuer”), met in public session at the regular meeting place of the 

Council at 5249 S 400 E in Washington Terrace, Utah, on September 6, 2016, at the hour 

of 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as feasible, with the following members of the Council 

being present: 

 Mark C. Allen Mayor 

 Scott Barker Council member 

 Blair Brown Council member 

 Robert Jensen Council member 

 Scott Monsen Council member 

 Val Shupe Council member 

  

Also present: 

 

 Tom Hanson City Manager 

 Shari Garrett Finance Director 

 Amy Rodriguez City Recorder 

 

Absent: 

  

After the meeting had been duly called to order and after other matters were 

discussed, the foregoing resolution authorizing bonds (the “Resolution”) was introduced 

in written form and fully discussed. 

A motion to adopt the Resolution was then duly made by Councilmember 

_____________ and seconded by Councilmember ______________ and the Resolution 

was put to a vote and carried, the vote being as follows: 

YEA: 

 

  

 

NAY: 

 

 

The Resolution was then signed by the Mayor in open meeting and recorded by 

the City Recorder in the official records of the Issuer. 

 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   B-1 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY RECORDER 

 

I, Amy Rodriguez, the duly appointed and qualified City Recorder of the City of 

Washington Terrace, Weber County, Utah (the “Issuer”), do hereby certify that the 

attached Resolution is a true, accurate and complete copy thereof as adopted by the City 

Council at a regular meeting duly held on September 6, 2016 (the “Meeting”). The 

Meeting was called and noticed as required by law as is evidenced by the attached 

Certificate of Compliance with Open Meeting Law.  The persons present and the result of 

the vote taken at the Meeting are all as shown above. The Resolution, with all exhibits 

attached, was deposited in my office on September 6, 2016 and is officially of record in 

my possession. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my signature and 

impressed hereon the official seal of the Issuer, this September 6, 2016. 

 

 

( S E A L )     ____________________________________ 

 City Recorder 

 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   B-1 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

OPEN MEETING LAW 

I, Amy Rodriguez, the undersigned City Recorder of City of Washington Terrace, 

Weber County, Utah (the “Issuer”), do hereby certify, according to the records of the 

Issuer in my official possession, and upon my own knowledge and belief, that in 

accordance with the requirements of Section 52-4-6(2), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as 

amended, I gave not less than twenty-four (24) hours public notice of the agenda, date, 

time and place of the September 6, 2016 public meeting, held by the Issuer as follows: 

(a) By causing a Notice, in the form attached hereto as Schedule 1 (the 

“Meeting Notice”), to be posted at the Issuer's principal offices, at least 

twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the meeting, the Meeting Notice 

having continuously remained so posted and available for public inspection until 

the completion of the meeting; and 

(b) By causing a copy of the Meeting Notice to be delivered to a 

newspaper of general circulation in the Issuer at least twenty-four (24) hours prior 

to the convening of the meeting. 

(c) By posting the Notice on the Utah Public Notice Website at least 

24 hours prior to the meeting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my official signature this 

September 6, 2016. 

 

____________________________________ 

 City Recorder 

 

( S E A L ) 

 

[Attach Schedule 1, Meeting Notice] 

 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006   B-1 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 

 

GENERAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

 

(See Transcript Document No. ____) 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006 C-1 

EXHIBIT "C" 

 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

 

(See Transcript Document No. ____) 

 



4844-9134-3414/WA814-006 D-1 

  

EXHIBIT D 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

(See Transcript Document No. __) 

 

 

 



























































































































City Council Staff Report 

            

       
 

  
 
 
Item:    Two (2) lot split of parcel #07-381-0002 
Author:  Building & Planning Dept. 
Subject: Plat approval for Jacob Rosser/Developer at approximately 286 West 

5600 South  
Date:  September 6, 2016 
Type of Item: Action 

 
Summary Recommendations: Approval to subdivide parcel #07-381-0002 to create a two 
(2) lot subdivision. The proposed split and request is by the owner Jacob Rosser/Developer. 
 
Description: 
 
A. Topic:  to subdivide Parcel #07-381-0002 into two (2) lots.  (see attached plat for details) 
 
B. Background:   The property is located on the corner at approximately 286 West 5600 
South. This lot is most likely a part of the original Phase but was never divided off of the existing 
current lot at 286 West 5600 South.  A Public Hearing was held at Planning Commission on 
August 25,2016, and was given a favorable recommendation to approve. 

 
The following list is items the development has complied with.  
 
 Zoning R-1-10. This is a permitted use and complies with Subdivision standards for a 

corner lot. 17.12.040, area and density regulation, Area and density regulations in the single-
family residential zones are as follows: R-1-10, Corner lot Area (Sq Ft ) 7,000 Sq Ft minimum. 

 The subdivision and lot split has been reviewed by this department and conforms to the 
Washington Terrace City Municipal Code,  

 Complies with Setback requirements, lot sizes, and frontage distances as required. 
 The developer has submitted his application and has paid for the application. 
 The developer we be putting a house that resembles the house located at 484 West 5700 

South (Combe Rd), square footage of 4300, Two car garage and total evaluation of over 
$400,000.00. It should be compatible with the surrounding homes. 

 
C. Staff recommendation:   Staff recommends approval   
 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
The City Council may approve the Jacob Rosser subdivision plat as presented.  
B.   Deny the Request: 
The City Council can deny the applicants request  
C. Continue the Item: 
The City Council could table the item to a later meeting, for action at that time and by giving 
direction of concerns to staff and developer. 

Building & Planning  





 City Council 
Staff Report 

           

       
 

  
 
 
Author:  Planning Department 
Subject:  Ordinance adopting Section 10.18.010 Allowing for Road Classification and 

Limited Access Facilities; Section 17.44.205 relating to Landscaping requirements 
for Arterial and Collective Roads 

Date:  September 6, 2016 
Type of Item: Action 

 
Summary Recommendations:   Council may adopt Ordinance 16-05, approving Section 10.18.010 and 
allowing for Road Classification and Limited Access Facilities, and  Section 17.44.205 landscaping 
requirements for arterial and collective roads. 
 
Description:  
The purpose of Ordinance 16-05  is to limit, or not allow, residential driveways on to certain roadways, as 
designated as a limited access facility. The roads for limited access will be identified by the City Council. 
Section 17.44.205, addresses landscaping requirements for these types of lots/properties that will back up onto 
a limited access road. Landscaping Section 17.44.205, will describe the buffer area and  maintenance of park 
strip areas and sidewalks. 
With the possible growth coming into the City, the ordinance allows the City to exercise certain powers for the 
safety and health and well-being with orderly growth and reduce impact to traffic flow. 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 25,2016, and recommended approval of the 
ordinance. 
 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
The City Council may approve Ordinance 16-05, Section 10.18.010 Section 17.44.205 as outlined  
B.   Deny the Request: 
The City Council can deny the ordinance. 
C. Continue the Item: 
The City Council could table the item to a later meeting, for action at that time and by giving direction of 
concerns to staff and developer. 
Impacts:   none 

Building & Planning  



 

 

 WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY 
 ORDINANCE 16-05 
 
 ROAD CLASSIFICATION, LIMITED ACCESS, AND LANDSCAPING 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, 
UTAH, ADOPTING SECTION 10.18.010 ALLOWING FOR ROAD 
CLASSIFICATION AND LIMITED ACCESS FACILITIES; 
ADOPTING SECTION 17.44.205 RELATING TO LANDSCAPING 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ARTERIAL AND COLLECTOR ROADS; 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City (hereafter referred to as “City”) is a municipal 
corporation, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 authorizes the City to exercise 
certain police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to providing for safety 
and preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being, peace and good 
order for the inhabitants of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, Title 10, Chapter 9a, of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, enables the 
City to regulate land use and development; 
 
 WHEREAS, after publication of the required notice, the Planning Commission held its public 
hearing on August 25, 2016, to take public comment on this Ordinance, and subsequently gave its 
recommendation to approve this Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council received the recommendation from the Planning Commission and 
held its public meeting on September 6, 2016, and desires to act on this Ordinance; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of Washington Terrace City as 
follows: 
 
Section 1: Repealer.  Any word other, sentence, paragraph, or phrase inconsistent with this 

Ordinance is hereby repealed and any reference thereto is hereby vacated. 
 
Section 2: Adoption. Section 10.18.010 and Section 17.44.205 are hereby adopted to read as 

follows: 
 
10.18.010. Road Classification and Limited Access. 
1. Classification. Subject to approval by the City Manager, the City Engineer may designate, 

establish, regulate, or alter the road classification, including but not limited to: 
a. Arterial Roads. 
b. Collector Roads. 
c. Other Roads. 

2. Definitions. The following definitions apply: 
a. “Limited access facility” is defined under Utah Code Annotated §72-1-102(11). 
b. “Highway authority” under Utah Code Annotated 72-6-117 means the City. 



 

 

3. Limited Access Designation. Upon recommendation from the City Engineer, the City Council 
acting as the highway authority, may designate, establish, regulate, or alter, and maintain 
“limited-access facilities.” The following City roads are hereby designated as limited access 
facilities: 
a. ___________________________ between ________________ and 

_______________________. 
b. ___________________________ between ________________ and 

_______________________. 
4. Limited Access Regulations. Any road designed as a limited access facility under this Section, 

shall be subject to all or part of the limitations set forth in Utah Code Annotated §72-6-117, as 
specified in the limited access designation. No residential driveway is permitted to access any 
road designated as a limited access facility. 

 
17.44.205. Landscape requirements for certain roads. 
1. Applicablity. The following provisions shall govern lots in any zone where a lot has a rear yard  
             backing onto or a side yard adjoining an arterial or collector street as classified by the city. 
2. Buffer Required. In all new development, a strip of land directly adjacent to the right-of-way line   
              of the arterial or collector street shall be set aside to provide a buffer to enhance the streetscape  
             and mitigate the impacts of the arterial or collector street adjacent to the rear or side of a lot. 

a. This buffer shall be identified on the recorded plat in one of the following ways: 
i. As a landscape easement; or 
ii. As property owned in common by an owners association. 

b. The buffer shall be a minimum of five (5) feet in width. 
c. When the buffer is located in the rear or side yard of a lot, the buffer shall be a maximum 

of ten (10) feet. 
3            Landscaping. The following landscaping requirements apply: 

a.    Trees shall be located on twenty (20) foot centers within the buffer area. Any trees shall be   
    a variety as specified on the City’s recommended trees for park strips. 

             b        In the case where a lot is part of a subdivision and must face onto the arterial street, the  
                       required buffer and landscape theme shall be continued along the front of the lot. 
             c         Ground cover or high grade fabric shall be provided that is pervious and discourages weed  
                       growth. 

d. A minimum of two (2) shrubs shall be provided between the required trees. 
e. A six (6) foot solid or semi-private fence will be installed along the entire perimeter on 

the inside edge of the buffer area. For residential developments adjacent to Adams 
Avenue Parkway, a minimum eight (8) foot decorative masonry wall shall be installed 
along the entire perimeter on the inside edge of the landscape buffer area. The design of 
the masonry wall shall be consistent with the existing wall design as approved by the City 
Engineer. 

f. Irrigation for the buffer area shall be provided either through a master meter or through 
separate irrigation systems provided from each lot along the edge of the buffer area. 

g. The sidewalk and park strip shall be incorporated into the buffer area and may meander. 
Subject to any standards of the City or UDOT for state roads. 

5. Installation and Maintenance. The following applies: 
a. The developer shall be responsible for the installation of the buffer which shall be 

included in the financial guarantee for the development’s improvements. All 
improvements under this section are subject to a one (1) year guarantee by the developer. 

b. Where an owners association is involved, the recorded declarations and covenants shall 



 

 

 
 

 

include a provision providing for the collection of fees to maintain the buffer area.  
Maintenance of the buffer area shall also include the maintenance of the sidewalk and 
park strip area. 

c. Along major arterial roads and connecting collector roads that are linked to major 
entryways into the City, the City will have the option to assume responsibility for the 
maintenance and include a City entryway sign. In such a case, a one (1) year guarantee 
shall be required to cover the planted material and the irrigation system and drawings for 
the irrigation system must be submitted and approved by the City. 

 
Section 3:  Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this 

Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or 
specific application of this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which 
remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4:  Effective date.  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon posting or 

publication after final passage. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
________________________________________ 
MARK C. ALLEN, Mayor, 
Washington Terrace City 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 
RECORDED this ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
PUBLISHED OR POSTED this ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING 
According to the provision of U.C.A. §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the municipal recorder of 
Washington Terrace City, hereby certify that foregoing Ordinance was duly passed and 
published, or posted at 1)_________________ 2)________________ and 3)_________________ 
on the above referenced dates. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 



 City Council 
Staff Report 

           

 
 

 
 
 
Author:  Planning Department 
 
Subject:  Amending Chapter 17.12.050 relating to Residential Yard setbacks, Changing 

Minimum side yard setback requirements from property lines  
 
Date:  September 6, 2016 
 
Item:    Discussion/Action   

 
Summary Recommendations:   
By motion to approve the amendment to  Chapter 17.12.050 Residential yard setbacks which changes the 
minimum setback requirements from side yard property lines. The impact will be in the R-1-6 zone only. 
 
Background:    

 
Several new developments are coming into the city and the developers are attempting to try and bring a product 
that will be attractive for new buyers to purchase and will have curb appeal. The city has been approached and 
asked if the side yard setbacks could be reduced in the R-1-6 zone from 8 & 5 feet to 5 & 5 feet. By adopting this 
change, the developers will be able to incorporate three (3) car garages on to the lot, which is trending at this time.   
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 25, 2016, and gave a favorable recommendation to 
approve. 
 
Amendment: the highlighted area are the changes/new amendments and the strike through are the old 
ordinance that are being deleted. 
 
17.12.050  Minimum Front Yard Setbacks. 
The minimum yard setback requirements in the single-family residential zones are as follows: 
R-1-10:  Front Yard Setback: 30 ft. min. Rear Yard: 30 ft. min. Side Yard Dwelling: 8 ft. min. on 
one side, with total of 18 ft. min.on both sides 
R-1-8  Front Yard Setback: 30 ft. min. Rear Yard: 30 ft. min. Side Yard Dwelling: 8 ft. min. on one side, 
with total of 18 ft. min. on both sides 
R-1-6  Front Yard Setback: 25 ft. Rear Yard: 25 ft. min. Side Yard Dwelling: 5 ft. min. on each one side, 
with total of 13 10 ft. min. on both sides 
 

 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
Council may approve the ordinance allowing for side yard setbacks to have a 5ft. minimum on both sides.  
B.   Deny the Request: 
The Council can deny the applicants request  
C. Continue the Item: 
The Council could table the item to a later meeting, for action at that time and by giving direction of concerns to 
staff and developer. 
 

Building & Planning  



 WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY 
 ORDINANCE 16-06 
 
 RESIDENTIAL YARD SETBACKS 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, 
UTAH, AMENDING SECTION 17.12.050 RELATING TO 
RESIDENTIAL YARD SETBACKS; MAKING TECHNICAL 
CHANGES; SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City (hereafter referred to as “City”) is a municipal corporation, 

duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 

WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 authorizes the City to exercise certain 
police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to providing for safety and 
preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being, peace and good order for 
the inhabitants of the City; 
 

WHEREAS, Title 10, Chapter 9a, of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, enables the 
City to regulate land use and development; 
 

WHEREAS, after publication of the required notice, the Planning Commission held its public 
hearing on August 25, 2016, to take public comment on this Ordinance, and subsequently gave its 
recommendation to Approve this Ordinance; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council received the recommendation from the Planning Commission and 
held its public meeting on September 6, 2016, and desires to act on this Ordinance; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of Washington Terrace City as follows: 
 
Section 1: Repealer.  Any word other, sentence, paragraph, or phrase inconsistent with this 

Ordinance is hereby repealed and any reference thereto is hereby vacated. 
 
Section 2: Adoption and Amendment. Section 17.12.050 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.12.050 Minimum Front Yard Setbacks. 
The minimum yard setback requirements in the single-family residential zones are as follows: 
 

 R-1-10  R-1-8  R-1-6 

Front Yard Setback: 30 ft. min. Front Yard Setback: 30 ft. min. Front Yard Setback: 25 ft. min. 

Rear Yard: 30 ft. min. Rear Yard: 30 ft. min. Rear Yard: 25 ft. min. 

Side Yard Dwelling: 8 ft. min. on one side, 
with total of 18 ft. min. on both sides 

Side Yard Dwelling: 8 ft. min. on one side, with 
total of 18 ft. min. on both sides 

Side Yard Dwelling: 5 ft. min. on each one 

side, with total of 13 10 ft. min. on both sides

Side Yard for other main building: 
20 ft. min. 

Side Yard for other main building: 
20 ft. min. 

Side Yard for other main building: 
20 ft. min. 

 



 
 

 

1. Accessory buildings. The rear and side yard setback for accessory buildings is 1 foot, 
except where an accessory building rears on side yard of adjacent corner lot the set back in 
10 feet in the R-1-10 and R-1-8 Zones, and 5 feet in the R-1-6 Zone.  

2. Side setback for private garage. A private garage and other accessory buildings if located at 
least 6 ft. to rear of main building shall be set back a minimum 1 foot. No private garage to 
be closer than 10 feet to a dwelling on adjacent lot.  

3. Corner lots side yard adjacent to street. Dwelling and accessory building shall be set back 
20 feet in the R-1-10 and R-1-8 Zones, and 15 feet in the R-1-6 Zone. 

 
Section 3:  Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this 

Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or 
specific application of this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which 
remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4:  Effective date.  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon posting or 

publication after final passage. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
________________________________________ 
MARK C. ALLEN, Mayor, 
Washington Terrace City 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 
RECORDED this ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
PUBLISHED OR POSTED this ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING 
According to the provision of U.C.A. §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the municipal recorder of 
Washington Terrace City, hereby certify that foregoing Ordinance was duly passed and published, 
or posted at 1)_________________ 2)________________ and 3)_________________ on the 
above referenced dates. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 
 


